
 From: sara joyce 
 Sent: 22 September 2020 12:21

 To: Strong Laura
 Subject: Re: Borough of Charnwood (11 Tickow Lane Shepshed) Tree 

Preservation Order 2020
 Attachments: TreeSurvey&Report01-11 Tickow Lane_Shepshed_Leics_LE12 9LY 

(1).pdf

Hi Laura,
Please find attached a copy of the Tree report, and additional email sent from 
the Qualified 
Arboriculturist and Environmentalist re confirming in his professional opinion 
in relation to the Copper 
beech tree "recommendation that it was expedient to fell and replace now".
The council is already in receipt of these, and are clearly important as they 
are reports etc.. on the two 
trees in question, however I will send again to make sure the right department 
gains sight of them prior 
to hearing.
My concerns are purely of whether the council are going to take responsibility 
for the copper beech 
until the hearing, as pointed out within paragraph 6 of the email received from 
the Arboriculturist 
(2/6/20 - below) due to any potential damage it may cause in the meantime.(until
hearing).

Many Thanks

Sara Joyce 

From: Richard Jones rjtreeservices
Date: 2 June 2020 at 09:07:41 BST 
To: Dan | The Art Of Building 

Subject: RE:  11 tickow lane tree report
 
Hi Dan & Gary,
 
Thanks for the email.
 
My observations are as follows.
 
My brief was to undertake a survey and produce an impact assessment in respect 
of the 
beech and sycamore tree in terms of the construction of a new garage and wall. I

categorised the beech tree as a U on the basis that the BS5837 recommends that 
trees 
with a life expectancy of no greater than 10 years are Unsuitable for Retention.
In view 
of the existing surroundings and future building work proposed (and in all 
likelihood 
approved) it was my recommendation that it was expedient to fell and replace 
now.  It 



is highly likely the cost of felling the tree once the proposed building works 
have been 
completed would be increased, this is a unreasonable approach.  
 
It is clear to me that the copper beech tree is declining in health. It’s canopy
is sparse in 
comparison to other healthy copper beech trees. The attached Photograph 1 shows 
gaps in the canopy. The sky should not be so evident through the canopy of a 
healthy 
copper beech tree. The tips are clearly dying back which is a symptom of root 
dysfunction. The Ganoderma fruiting body is substantial-see photograph 2. 
Ganoderma 
sp fruiting bodies are perennial. This bracket has evidently been there for some

considerable amount of time. Staining next to the existing bracket indicates 
that 
another bracket was probably present. 
 
The Tree/Landscape Officer contradicts herself, she states the tree “exhibits 
good 
foliation” but is “in decline”. I agree with the second part in that the tree is
in decline. 
She suggests that a crown reduction may be a suitable alternative, which 
indicates the 
presence of a degree of risk. It is my considerable experience that mature beech
trees, 
particularly copper beech, do not respond well to pruning. They have a low mass 
to 
energy ratio, i.e. they have a lot of trunk and branch growth (mass) to sustain 
in 
comparison to the energy producing foliage-leaves etc. In addition, crown 
reduction 
pruning will inevitably result in open wounds that are an entry point for wood 
decay 
fungi and result in additional stress occurring by causing the tree to divert 
energy to 
closing wounds. An already stressed tree like this would be unlikely to tolerate
the 
degree of pruning necessary to mitigate the future risk of failure. 
 
The comments go on to state that an application to remove the tree must be 
accompanied by an “Arboricultural Association Registered arboricultural 
consultant’s 
report”. The application form states “you are required to provide written 
arboricultural 
advice or other diagnostic information from an appropriate expert” if you are 
applying 
to fell a TPO tree. There is no requirement for the consultant to be registered 
by the 
Arboricultural Association. A report or statement from a qualified 
arboricultural 
professional is sufficient.
 
The Tree/Landscape Officer also suggests that a resistograph appraisal be 



carried out. 
She says this is a system “that measures the speed of sound travelling across 
timber”. I 
think she is referring to PICUS Sonic Tomograph – Decay Detection Equipment. A 
resistograph measures the solidity of timber by electronically controlled drill 
resistance. 
Either way, this is an additional unreasonable expense relating to a tree the 
officer 
already agrees is in decline, and whose results are not always conclusive.
 
Guidance states that it would not be appropriate to make a TPO in respect of a 
tree that 
is dying or dangerous. The Tree Officer in this case has already stated that the
copper 
beech tree is in decline, which brings onto question the validity of the 
decision to make 
the TPO in the first place? If the TPO is confirmed with the beech included then
I would 
point out that the Regulations (Compensation) state “If, on a claim under this 
regulation, a person establishes that loss or damage has been caused or incurred
in 
consequence of (a) the refusal of any consent required under these Regulations” 
that 
person shall “be entitled to compensation from the authority”. Any claim must be
made 
within 12 months of the decision.
 
In conclusion, I stand by my recommendation that the safest and most sustainable

approach in this case would be to remove and replace the copper beech tree. 
Further, I 
would respectfully urge CBC not to confirm the TPO with the copper beech tree 
included. If the TPO is confirmed in its current format then I would suggest 
that you 
make an application to remove the tree. 
 
I hope this is helpful. Let me know if you have any questions.
 
Thanks Richard
 
Kind regards 
 
 
Richard Jones MICFor, CEnv, F Arbor A
Director
 
Institute of Chartered Foresters Registered Consultant
ISA Tree Risk Assessment Qualified
 
Chartered Arboriculturist & Environmentalist 
 
For: RJ Tree Services Ltd 

www.rjtreeservices.co.uk 



 
Company no England & Wales: 9484682 
 
This e-mail and any attachments are confidential and are sent entirely for 
the person, organisation or company they are addressed. 
Should you receive this e-mail in error then please delete it. 
While every care has been taken to check this outgoing e-mail for viruses, 
it is your responsibility to check it and its attachments for viruses on 
receipt
 
 
  

On Wed, Jul 15, 2020 at 3:30 PM Strong Laura <Laura.Strong@charnwood.gov.uk> 
wrote:
Dear Mrs Joyce
 
Many thanks for resending your email below.
 
As stated when I spoke to you on Monday, T2 copper beech remains protected by 
the 
provisional TPO, but I have asked the Council’s Senior Landscape Officer, Nola 
O’Donnell, to get in touch with you as soon as possible given your concern that 
the tree 
is unsafe and the advice that you have requested below.
 
In terms of the forthcoming Appeals and Reviews Committee on 28th September 
2020, 
I currently have your original objection set out in your email dated 19 May 
2020.  If you 
would like me to submit additional information to the Committee, please would 
you 
send this through to me? You refer to a tree report and additional email below, 
but I 
don’t have this.
 
Best wishes
 
Laura Strong
Democratic Services Officer
Charnwood Borough Council
Southfield Road, Loughborough LE11 2TX 
Email: laura.strong@charnwood.gov.uk
Tel: 01509 634734
 
www.charnwood.gov.uk
Follow us on Twitter @CharnwoodBC
Get all the latest Charnwood Borough Council news at www.charnwoodnews.net 
 
 
Data Protection
 
For information about how and why we may process your personal data, your data 
protection rights or how to contact our Data 



Protection Officer, please view our Privacy Notice
 
From: sara joyce  
Sent: 13 July 2020 14:41 
To: Strong Laura <Laura.Strong@charnwood.gov.uk> 
Subject: Fwd: Borough of Charnwood (11 Tickow Lane Shepshed) Tree Preservation 
Order 2020
 
Dear Laura,
Email sent last Monday. thank you.
Sara Joyce
---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: sara joyce
Date: Mon, Jul 6, 2020 at 2:25 PM 
Subject: Re: Borough of Charnwood (11 Tickow Lane Shepshed) Tree Preservation 
Order 2020 
To: Strong Laura <Laura.Strong@charnwood.gov.uk>
 
Dear Laura,
 
Hope this email finds you well. Thankyou for your recent letter regarding the 
objection to the Tree 
preservation order with regards to dates and times etc for hearing.
 
I'm sure you are aware that our planning application has now been approved, 
however with regards to 
the trees there has been additional correspondence sent since I last spoke to 
yourself, in particular 
with reference to the Copper Beech tree to which has been categorized as U, and 
advised the Tree 
unfortunately needs to come down.
 
I wanted to make sure that you are able to gain sight of the Tree report, and 
additional email in relation 
to this prior to the hearing, as if not I could forward on for you. I am also a 
little concerned as now we 
have been made aware of the Copper Beech trees condition, with the 
recommendation of felling by a 
professional due to safety,life expectancy etc. how we stand. Is the Council 
going to take responsibility 
for the tree in the meantime?until the hearing? as the copper beech is in very 
close proximity to our 
neighbours garage, road and pavement which is quite concerning. The tree 
specialist has made his 
recommendations and the planning has been approved taking his advice on board, 
however we have 
sort of been left in limbo,what with this TPO  do we have it taken down? Do we 
have to make a 
seperate application to fell the tree or just wait until the hearing and the 
council take responsibility for 
the copper beech until then?  Apologies for all the questions, would be grateful
for your advice on this 
please.
 



Many thanks
 
Sara Joyce
 

 



 

 

27 Main Street, Foxton, Leicestershire, LE16 7RB 

Mob: 07765 792719 Email: richard@rjtreeservices.co.uk 

Chartered Arboricultural Consultancy & Advice  

www.rjtreeservices.co.uk 
Company Number: 9484682 
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Tree Survey  
Impact Assessment Report & Method Statement 

1 
Issue Date: May 2020 

Site: 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed, Leic’s, LE12 9LY 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 Instructions were received from Mr and Mrs Joyce (the client) to appraise the trees 

shown on the accompanying Tree Survey, Constraints and Layout Plan 01 (Layout). 

 

1.2 Qualifications of the Surveyor & Indemnity 

 

1.2.1 Richard Jones is the sole Director at RJ Tree Services Ltd. He is a Chartered 

Arboriculturist and Environmentalist. Richard is an Institute of Chartered Foresters 

(ICF) Registered Consultant and thus is subject to the ICF Professional Code of 

Conduct with a duty to provide objective, professional and responsible advice.  

 

1.2.2 Richard holds the International Society of Arboriculture Tree Risk Assessment 

Qualification (TRAQ), a Higher National Diploma (HND) in Arboriculture, a National 

Certificate (NC) in Horticulture and a City and Guilds Certificate in Amenity 

Horticulture. He has in excess of 30 years craft and managerial experience in the 

Arboricultural and Landscape Management industries in the United Kingdom and 

the United States including six years as a local authority Tree Officer and 15 years as 

a consultant working for various public, commercial and domestic clients. 

 

1.2.3 Richard is a Fellow (F Arbor A) and Chartered Environmentalist (CEnv) Member of 

the Arboricultural Association and a Professional Member of the Institute of 

Chartered Foresters (MICFor). He is committed to professional development and 

regularly attends relevant seminars and courses. 

 

1.2.4 RJ Tree Services Ltd holds professional indemnity and public liability insurance which 

is limited to £1000000. Please contact us should you require any more information 

relating to this matter. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Tree Survey  
Impact Assessment Report & Method Statement 

2 
Issue Date: May 2020 

Site: 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed, Leic’s, LE12 9LY 

2. Brief 

 

2.1 A scheme is proposed to acquire planning permission to construct a new garage and 

front wall as described on the Layout Drawing Number 19.120.2 by the Art of 

Building Architects. An application has been submitted to Charnwood Borough 

Council (P/20/0168/2). The Tree Officer has requested that the applicant provide 

data to demonstrate how the impact on the trees by this proposal may be mitigated. 

The purpose of this survey is therefore: 

 

• To provide an objective assessment of the trees in direct proximity to the 

development to the BS5837 (2012) ‘Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and 

Construction-Recommendations’ to inform and guide the site layout. 

 

• To provide enough data to calculate tree Root Protection Areas. 

 

• To Produce a Tree Survey and Constraints Plan. 

 

• To comment on the outline layout and the trees. 

 
3. Survey Collection Information 

 

3.1 Richard Jones carried out a brief visual check of the trees on the 13 May 2020 in 

accordance with the guidelines in the BS5837 (2012) Trees in Relation to Design, 

Demolition and Construction-Recommendations. He was unaccompanied while 

carrying out the survey work. The trees are described on the Tree Survey, 

Constraints and Layout Plan 01 as T1 and so on. The survey is based on a plan 

provided by the architect.  

 

3.2 The survey was carried out from ground level. The weather conditions were clear 

with enough visibility for surveying trees for planning purposes. This survey/report is 

not a detailed individual tree risk assessment. No digging or drilling was carried out. 

 

3.3 The survey was carried out from within the site and the neighboring public roads. 

The trees growing outside the site are the responsibility of the adjacent landowners. 

They should not be pruned or worked on in any way without consulting with the 

owners. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Tree Survey  
Impact Assessment Report & Method Statement 

3 
Issue Date: May 2020 

Site: 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed, Leic’s, LE12 9LY 

4. Conditions & Limitations 

 

4.1 Trees are dynamic organisms whose health and condition can be subject to changes. 

Thus, it is recommended that they should be assessed by a competent and qualified 

person on a regular basis. It is proposed that the trees discussed in this survey be 

assessed every 2 years or more often where stated and/or immediately following 

stormy/extreme weather conditions. 

 

4.2 While every effort has been made to identify defects within the trees inspected, no 

absolute guarantee can be given or is intended to the safety or otherwise of any tree 

or trees discussed in this survey or report. Extreme climatic conditions can on 

occasions cause damage to what appear to be healthy trees. 

 

4.3 The period of validity of this survey may be reduced if work is undertaken upon or if 

the conditions directly adjacent or in proximity to the trees are changed without 

prior consultation. 

 

4.4 It will be necessary to clear plant growth and/or debris and/or gain access and carry 

out a further assessment as directed in the survey schedule in situations where an 

assessment has been restricted by a lack of access, a build-up of debris, plant growth 

or other materials. The requirement for supplementary assessments is highlighted 

clearly in the survey schedule. These assessments should be carried out immediately 

following the removal of the plant growth and/or debris and the availability of 

access. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Tree Survey  
Impact Assessment Report & Method Statement 

4 
Issue Date: May 2020 

Site: 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed, Leic’s, LE12 9LY 

5. Legal Considerations 

 

5.1 Tree Preservation Orders (TPO) & Conservation Areas:  We have been informed 

that the trees T1, T2 and T3 in the survey schedule are subject to a TPO. A TPO is an 

order made by a local authority (LA) to protect trees when it is expedient in the 

interests of amenity. Written consent from the LA must be obtained before any 

work can take place on protected trees. Failure to acquire written consent from the 

LA or damage, deliberate or otherwise, to TPO trees may result in prosecution and a 

substantial fine. 

 

5.2 Exemptions: An exemption from the need to apply under the TPO applies to the 

removal of dead limbs or dead trees or where tree pruning, or removal work is 

necessary to implement a development with full planning permission. This 

exemption does not apply to outline planning consent. 

 

5.3 Trees and Wildlife: Trees are hosts to nesting birds, many of which are protected by 

law. Investigations should be carried out by properly trained operatives for signs of 

bats (all of which are protected by law) and nesting birds and advice sought from 

appropriate agencies such as Natural England, the Bat Conservation Trust (BCT) or 

the Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) following any positive sightings. 

Tree works should be planned carefully to avoid disturbing nesting birds and 

roosting bats. The disturbance of protected species is an offence and could result in 

prosecution, a criminal record and a substantial fine. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Tree Survey  
Impact Assessment Report & Method Statement 

5 
Issue Date: May 2020 

Site: 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed, Leic’s, LE12 9LY 

6. The Trees & the Development-Impact Assessment 

 

6.1 Root Protection Areas: Section 4.6 of the BS5837 (2012) suggests that the Root 

Protection Area (RPA) for single stemmed trees is calculated as an area equivalent to 

a circle with a radius 12 times the stem diameter.  

 

6.2 An RPA is a basic representation of a tree’s root area. In some circumstances special 

procedures should be implemented when building structures inside the RPA’s of 

retained trees such as no-dig surfaces or pile and beam foundations. 

 

Layout Advice 

 

6.3 A layout is described on Drawing Number 19.120.2. Trees are a material 

consideration in the development process. It is advised that A and B Category trees 

are the most noteworthy specimens. There are no A category trees here. 

 

6.4 Tree Loss & Retention within the Development Area: This proposal does not require 

the loss of any trees. Notwithstanding that, the copper beech tree T1 is in a poor 

structural condition with low vigour. A substantial Ganoderma applanatum decay 

fungus fruiting body is located at the base (photograph 1). There is evidence of 

wood degradation around the fruiting body. Light tapping with a sounding hammer 

around fungus revealed a hollow tone. We easily pushed a screwdriver into the stem 

just above the fruiting body. Ganoderma sp, in its advanced stage, can result in 

structural collapse, particularly at the base of the stem and root plate. Ganoderma 

sp fruiting bodies are perennial. It appears that it has been there for some time. 

 

 
Photograph 1 

 

 

 



Tree Survey  
Impact Assessment Report & Method Statement 

6 
Issue Date: May 2020 

Site: 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed, Leic’s, LE12 9LY 

6.5 The copper beech tree T1 has low vigour. Its crown density is 30-40% of what it 

should be in mid-May. It has a sparse crown (photograph 2) and small twigs are 

dying back from the tips. These are indicators of poor root function. Efficient healthy 

root growth is fundamental to a tree’s ability to grow and defend itself from disease, 

decay etc. 

 

 
Photograph 2 

 

6.6 There are several current high value targets around the tree T1 including an existing 

garage, road, access way and pavement. Hence, it is our recommendation that the 

safest and most sustainable approach would be to remove and replace it. 

  

6.7  The sycamore trees T2 and T3 are given a Moderate (B) Classification. They are 

prominent in the landscape. T3 is in the neighbour’s garden. Its stem diameter is 

estimated. 

 

6.8 The woody shrubs and small trees in the groups G4 and G5 have little or no merit in 

the landscape. They are given a Low (C) therefore.  

 

6.9 The Trees & the Structures: The new garage is to be sited outside the RPA’s of the 

retained sycamore trees T2 and T3 as described on the layout plan. There will be a 

slight incursion into the RPA of T2 to carry out construction works. This should be 

done from a temporary surface to protect the ground from compaction as described 

in the following method statement. 

 

 

 

 

 



Tree Survey  
Impact Assessment Report & Method Statement 

7 
Issue Date: May 2020 

Site: 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed, Leic’s, LE12 9LY 

6.10 The New Wall: A new wall is proposed on the frontage as described on the layout 

plan inside the RPA of the sycamore tree T2. The wall will be constructed on 

concrete supports/bases as described on plan 19.120.2 and the lintels spanned 

between at or just above ground level. This would do away with the need to 

excavate a strip footing and effectively bridge over the RPA safely retaining the tree. 

 

6.11 The new wall inside the RPA’s of the retained trees should be carried out from 

temporary ground protection surface.  

 

6.12 Access to the Site: Access to the site will be from an existing driveway (photograph 

3) which is to remain and will provide protection to the roots. 

  

 
Photograph 3 

 

6.13 Utilities: Utilities are already installed at the site. There is no need to carry out 

excavations inside the RPA’s of the retained trees to fit new utilities.  

 

6.14 Tree Pruning: It is recommended that the canopy of the retained sycamore tree T2 

be lifted to roughly 3.5m above ground level to facilitate access to the site. 

 

6.15 Tree Protection during Development & Storage: The retained trees will be 

protected as described in the following method statement. There is adequate room 

for storage inside the garden away from the retained trees. The roots of the trees 

will be protected by the existing hard surface which is to be retained.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


